


Table of Contents

{HUBBELL
St g i

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, DC 20549

FORM 10Q

X1 QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003

[ 1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from  to

Commission File Number 1-2958

HUBBELL INCORPORATED

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

State of Connecticut 06-0397030
(State or other jurisdiction of (IR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
584 Derby Milford Road, Orange, CT 06477
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(203) 799-4100

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

N/A

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days.

Yes [X] No [ ]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes [X] No[ ]

The number of shares outstanding of the Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock as of November 3, 2003 were 9,605,847 and 50,128,753,
respectively.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANAILYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESUILTS
OF OPERATIONS
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCL.LOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
PART II — OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




Table of Contents

Part I

Item 1.

Item 2.
Item 3.
Item 4.
Part II.
Item 1.
Item 2.
Item 3.
Item 4.
Item 5.
Item 6.

INDEX

HUBBELL INCORPORATED

Financial Information

Financial Statements — (unaudited)

Consolidated Statements of Income — Three and nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Balance Sheets — September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — September 30, 2003

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Controls and Procedures

Other Information

Legal Proceedings

Changes In Securities and Use of Proceeds

Defaults upon Senior Securities

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Other Information

Exhibits

Reports on Form 8-K and Signatures

Page

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

22

23




Table of Contents

HUBBELL INCORPORATED
PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated Statements of Income

(unaudited)
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2003 2002 2003 2002
Net sales $457.3 $445.8 $1,326.1 $1,161.6
Cost of goods sold 329.1 330.4 972.4 863.7
Gross profit 128.2 115.4 353.7 297.9
Selling & administrative expenses 77.5 73.1 227.3 193.2
Special charges (credits), net (0.2) (0.4) 5.8 1.3
Gain on sale of business — (1.6) — (3.0)
Operating income 50.9 44.3 120.6 106.4
Other income (expense):
Investment income 0.8 1.3 2.8 3.9
Interest expense (5.2) (5.8) (15.5) (12.3)
Other income, net — 0.6 0.7 1.2
Total other income (expense) 4.4) 3.9 (12.0) (7.2)
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change 46.5 40.4 108.6 99.2
Provision for income taxes 12.1 9.3 28.2 17.8
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 344 31.1 80.4 81.4
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of taxes — — — (25.4)
Net Income $ 344 $ 311 $ 804 $ 56.0
Earnings Per Share-Basic
Before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 0.57 $ 0.53 $ 135 $ 137
I I N I
After cumulative effect of accounting change $ 0.57 $ 0.53 $ 135 $ 094
I I I I
Earnings Per Share-Diluted
Before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 0.57 $ 0.52 $ 133 $ 136
After cumulative effect of accounting change $ 0.57 $ 0.52 $ 133 $ 093
I I N I
Cash Dividends Per Common Share $ 0.33 $ 0.33 $ 099 $ 099
I I I I
Average number of common shares outstanding — Diluted 60.7 59.6 60.0 59.6

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HUBBELL INCORPORATED

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in millions)

(unaudited)
September 30, 2003 December 31, 2002
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and temporary cash investments $ 1754 $ 40.0
Short-term investments 15.0 15.0
Accounts receivable (net) 255.5 221.2
Inventories (net) 211.3 258.0
Deferred taxes and other 50.9 62.1
Total current assets 708.1 596.3
Property, plant and equipment (net) 297.7 320.6
Other assets:
Investments 74.7 76.5
Goodwill 318.6 314.6
Intangible assets and other 90.8 102.3
Total Assets $1,489.9 $1,410.3
I I
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Commercial paper and notes $ — $ —
Accounts payable 96.6 86.2
Accrued salaries, wages and employee benefits 51.3 39.8
Accrued income taxes 33.6 25.5
Dividends payable 19.7 19.5
Other accrued liabilities 87.6 83.7
Total current liabilities 288.8 254.7
Long-term debt 298.8 298.7
Other non-current liabilities 119.6 112.7
Shareholders’ equity 782.7 744.2
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $1,489.9 $1,410.3
I I

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HUBBELL INCORPORATED

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(unaudited)
(in millions)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Cumulative effect of accounting change
Gain on sale of business
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Special charges (credits), net
Expenditures — streamlining and special charges
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of business acquisitions:
(Increase)/Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in current operating liabilities
Other, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired

Additions to property, plant and equipment

Purchases of available-for-sale investments

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments

Proceeds from maturities/sales of held-to-maturity investments
Other, net

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Payment of dividends

Commercial paper — borrowings

Long term debt borrowings

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Increase in cash and temporary cash investments
Cash and temporary cash investments

Beginning of period

End of period

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Nine Months Ended
September 30
2003 2002
$ 80.4 $ 56.0
— 25.4
— (3.0)
39.6 40.0
13.0 =
2.8 1.3
(6.3) (10.6)
(31.2) 1.4
50.0 48.2
48 (1.2)
33.1 (7.2)
3.6 0.4
189.8 150.7
— (268.5)
(17.0) (16.0)
(40.2) (23.4)
41.2 25.8
(15.0) (30.0)
154 18.3
10.1 1.7
(5.5) (292.1)
(58.7) (58.3)
— 39.0
— 198.8
9.8 8.0
(48.9) 187.5
135.4 46.1
40.0 33.4
$175.4 $ 795
I L]
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HUBBELL INCORPORATED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2003
(unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Hubbell Incorporated (“Hubbell”, the “Company”, or “Registrant”) have been prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and
footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for complete financial statements. In the opinion of
management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating results for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2003 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2003. Certain prior year amounts
have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

The balance sheet at December 31, 2002 has been derived from the audited financial statements at that date but does not include all of the information and
footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for complete financial statements.

For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Hubbell Incorporated Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

2. Stock- Based Compensation

Effective December 2002, the Company adopted the disclosure provisions as outlined in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 148
“Accounting for Stock Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123”. SFAS No. 123 - “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” permits, but does not require, a fair value based method of accounting for employee stock option and performance plans which
results in compensation expense being recognized in the results of operations when awards are granted. The Company continues to use the intrinsic value
based method of accounting for such plans in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,”
where compensation expense per option granted is measured as the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the Company’s stock at the measurement
date over the exercise price.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS
No. 123 for stock options (in millions, except per share amounts):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2003 2002 2003 2002
Net income, as reported $34.4 $31.1 $80.4 $56.0
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based
method, net of related tax effects (1.2) (1.0) (3.4) 3.0)
Pro forma Net income $33.2 $30.1 $77.0 $53.0
Earnings per share after cuamulative effect of accounting change:
Basic — as reported $ .57 $ .53 $1.35 $ .94
Basic — pro forma $ .55 $ 51 $1.29 $ .90
Diluted — as reported $ .57 $ .52 $1.33 $ .93
Diluted — pro forma $ .55 $ 51 $1.29 $ .89
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3. Inventories are classified as follows (in millions):

September 30, December 31,
2003 2002
Raw Material $ 76.0 $ 87.2
Work-in-Process 49.5 67.5
Finished Goods 124.3 142.8
249.8 297.5
Excess of FIFO costs over LIFO cost basis (38.5) (39.5)
Total $211.3 $258.0
I I

4. Business Combinations
There were no business acquisitions or dispositions for the first nine months of 2003.

In April 2002, Hubbell acquired the LCA Group, Inc. (“LCA”), the domestic lighting business of U.S. Industries, Inc. The purchase price for the
acquisition was approximately $235.0 million in cash.

LCA manufactures and distributes a wide range of outdoor and indoor lighting products to commercial, industrial and residential markets under various
brand names, including Alera, Kim, Spaulding, Whiteway, Moldcast, Architectural Area Lighting, Columbia, Keystone, Prescolite, Dual-Lite and Progress.
Hubbell financed the acquisition of LCA with available cash and through the issuance of $200.0 million of long-term notes in May 2002.

The following unaudited pro forma data summarize the results of operations for the periods indicated as if the acquisition of LCA had been completed as
of January 1, 2002. The pro forma data give effect to actual operating results prior to the acquisition and includes adjustments to interest expense and other
costs associated with the acquisition. No effect has been given to cost reductions or operating synergies in this presentation. These pro forma amounts do not
purport to be indicative of the results that would have actually been reported if the acquisition had occurred as of January 1, 2002 or that may be reported in
the future (in millions, except per share amounts):

Nine Months Ended
September 30
2003 2002
Pro forma
Net sales $1,326.1 $1,334.1
Income before taxes and accounting change $ 108.6 $ 103.3
Income before effect of accounting change $ 804 $ 845
Earnings per share before accounting change — Diluted $ 133 $ 142

Management believes that the combination of the LCA brand names acquired and Hubbell’s other lighting brands has created leading market positions in
many product segments of the North American lighting fixtures industry. Further, the acquisition added complementary products to the Company’s current
product offering and enhanced the ability of the Company to attract leading manufacturers’ representatives in key markets, which is the primary channel to
market in the North American lighting fixtures business. The acquired businesses are included in the Company’s Electrical Segment beginning on the

acquisition date of April 26, 2002.
Dispositions

In April 2000, the Company completed the sale of its WavePacer Digital Subscriber Line (“WavePacer”) assets, part of Pulse Communications, Inc., for a
sales price of $61.0 million. The transaction produced a pretax gain on sale of $36.2 million in 2000. At the time of sale, the Company retained a contractual
obligation to supply product to the buyer at prices below manufacturing cost, resulting in an adverse commitment.

7
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In September 2002, the Company entered into an agreement modifying the original manufacturing contract. In accordance with the modification
agreement, final quantities were shipped and the Company was released from all service and warranty obligations, which resulted in a pretax gain of $1.6
million in the 2002 third quarter. For the first nine months of 2002, a total pretax gain of $3.0 million related to this sale was recorded.

5. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of earnings per share for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 (in millions,
except per share amounts).

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2003 2002 2003 2002
Net income $34.4 $31.1 $80.4 $56.0
Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period 59.9 59.1 59.5 59.1
Potential dilutive shares 0.8 0.5 0.5 0.5
Average number of shares outstanding —
diluted 60.7 59.6 60.0 59.6
I I I I
Earnings per share after cumulative effect of
accounting change:
Basic $0.57 $0.53 $1.35 $0.94
Diluted $0.57 $0.52 $1.33 $0.93
— — — —

A portion of the total number of options to purchase shares of common stock were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because
the effect would be anti-dilutive. The number of anti-dilutive options outstanding were 1.9 million for the third quarter and 3.6 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2003. The number of anti-dilutive options outstanding were 2.8 million for the third quarter and 2.3 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2002.

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, by segment, were as follows (in millions):

Segment
Industrial
Electrical Power Technology Total
Balance December 31, 2002 $160.3 $112.7 $41.6 $314.6
Adjustments to goodwill 2.4 — — 24
Translation adjustments 1.6 — — 1.6
Balance September 30, 2003 $164.3 $112.7 $41.6 $318.6

In the first and second quarters of 2003, the Company made certain adjustments to goodwill in order to finalize the purchase accounting of the
acquisitions of Hawke Cable Glands Limited (“Hawke”) and LCA. These adjustments related to the fair value of certain fixed assets and accrued liabilities.

During 2002, the Company completed the initial impairment tests of the recorded value of goodwill, as required by SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets”. The Company identified one reporting unit within the Industrial Technology segment with a book value, including goodwill, which
exceeded its fair market value. Thereafter, the implied fair value of the goodwill for this reporting unit was calculated, which resulted in a non-cash charge of
$25.4 million, net of tax, or $0.43 per share-diluted to write-down the full value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. This non-cash charge was reported as the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle retroactive to January 1, 2002. Fair values were calculated using a range of future operating results and
primarily utilized a discounted cash flow model. In the second quarter of 2003, the Company performed its annual impairment testing of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets. This testing resulted in implied fair values for each reporting unit which exceeded the reporting unit’s carrying value,
including goodwill. Similarly, there were no impairments of indefinite-lived intangible assets. The Company’s policy is to perform its annual impairment
testing in the second quarter of each year, unless circumstances dictate the need for more frequent assessments.

8
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Identifiable intangible assets as of September 30, 2003 are recorded in Intangible assets and other in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and include
approximately $25 million of indefinite-lived intangible assets not subject to amortization and $8.7 million of intangibles with definite lives that are being
amortized and are presented net of accumulated amortization of $2.1 million. Indefinite lived intangible assets primarily represent trade names and customer
lists, while definite-lived intangible assets primarily represent trademarks and patents, for which amortization expense is expected to be approximately
$1 million per year over the next five years.

7. Shareholders’ Equity

Shareholders’ Equity is comprised of the following (in millions, except share and per share amounts):

September 30, December 31,
2003 2002
Common stock, $.01 par value:
Class A-authorized 50,000,000 shares, Outstanding 9,625,847 and 9,671,623
shares $ 0.1 $ 0.1
Class B-authorized 150,000,000 shares Outstanding 50,391,482 and
49,569,534 shares 0.5 0.5
Additional paid-in-capital 232.3 220.6
Retained earnings 575.2 553.7
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Pension liability adjustment (12.4) (12.4)
Cumulative translation adjustment (12.2) (17.6)
Cash flow hedge loss (1.1 (1.2)
Unrealized gain on investments 0.3 0.5
Total Accumulated other comprehensive income (25.4) (30.7)
Total Shareholders’ Equity $782.7 $744.2

8. Special Charges
Special Charges — Lighting Business Integration Program

Special charges (credits), net in the third quarter of 2003 reflect a net credit of $0.2 million. The net credit in the quarter consists of special charges of
$1.0 million related to asset disposals, plant shutdown expenses and relocation of inventory and employees in connection with the ongoing lighting business
integration program (the “Program”). Offsetting the $1.0 million of special charges was income of $1.2 million primarily resulting from favorable
adjustments related to actual and estimated realizable values of buildings and equipment either sold or held for sale in connection with the Program.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2003, special charges (credits), net totaled $5.8 million comprised of $7.0 million of expenses, partially offset
by the $1.2 million credit noted above. Program costs charged to expense in 2003 include the following:

1. Costs associated with integration actions announced at the end of 2002 which, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, are to
be expensed as incurred. These costs totaled $4.2 million for the first nine months of 2003 and consisted of plant shutdown expenses of
$2.2 million, personnel realignment costs of $0.9 million, and other costs of $1.1 million.

2. Integration actions undertaken in 2003 totaling $2.8 million associated with management’s decision to exit the entertainment lighting fixtures
product offering. Costs associated with this action were recorded in the 2003 second quarter and consist of contract cancellation costs of
$1.5 million and asset impairment and other costs of $1.3 million. In addition to the Special charge component on this action, $1.8 million was
included in Cost of goods sold for the write-down of entertainment lighting fixture inventory to estimated salvage value. Consequently, the total
cost associated with the entertainment lighting product line discontinuance was $4.6 million.

The lighting integration program began in December 2002 with a pretax charge to earnings of $10.3 million to provide for the following actions:

9
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Product Line Inventory Rationalization — ($5.4 million)

This program reflected management’s decision to streamline its product offering and rationalize overlapping product lines between Hubbell’s existing
lighting fixture business and the lighting fixture businesses acquired in 2002. The cost of this program reflected the write-down of the carrying cost of
certain inventory to estimated salvage value and was included in Cost of goods sold in the 2002 Consolidated Statement of Income. This inventory will be
scrapped or sold for a nominal value, which was considered in the write-down recorded.

Reorganization — ($4.9 million)

The 2002 special charge also included costs related to future actions to integrate and reorganize the lighting fixture businesses acquired in 2002.
Specific actions being undertaken or already completed, all within the Electrical segment, include the following:

. Relocate San Leandro, CA office

. Close Martin, TN manufacturing facility
. Consolidate warehouses

. Rationalize product lines

Total reorganization costs of $4.9 million expensed in the 2002 fourth quarter included severance costs ($1.8 million), asset impairments
($2.4 million) and other facility exit costs ($0.7 million). A facility in Martin, TN was closed in the first quarter of 2003 and the carrying cost of this
facility was reduced to estimated realizable value. Total estimated proceeds of $1.0 million from asset sale recoveries were considered in determining
the asset impairment charges. However, as noted above, actual amounts realized on asset sales and revised estimates of amounts to be realized from
assets held-for-sale have increased the estimate of proceeds by approximately $1.2 million.

Employee benefit costs included estimated severance benefits for 222 employees, all of whom left the Company by March 31, 2003.

Facility exit costs included warehouse lease termination costs, postproduction maintenance and facility restoration costs associated with facilities to
be closed, and costs incurred in 2002 for moving equipment.

In addition to the $10.3 million 2002 special charge discussed above, an additional $2.0 million of costs related to integration activities affecting the
acquired LCA operations were accrued at December 31, 2002 in the purchase accounting for the acquisition of LCA. The $2.0 million of costs accrued in
purchase accounting were primarily severance and employee relocation costs ($1.7 million) in connection with the closure of the San Leandro, CA facility.
Separation benefits were provided for approximately 64 employees, all of whom had left the Company by September 30, 2003.

The following table sets forth the components and status of total accrued lighting business integration costs at September 30, 2003 (in millions):

Employee Exit
Benefits Costs Total
Accrual balance at December 31, 2002 $ 3.1 $0.7 $ 3.8
Cash expenditures (0.8) (0.5) (1.3)
Accrual balance at March 31, 2003 2.3 0.2 2.5
Additional program costs — 1.8 1.8
Cash expenditures (1.3) — (1.3)
Accrual balance at June 30, 2003 1.0 2.0 3.0
Cash expenditures 0.7) (2.0) .7)
Accrual balance at September 30, 2003 $03 — $03
— — —

Through September 30, 2003, approximately $20.0 million has either been accrued in purchase accounting or charged to expense in connection with this
Program. Substantially all actions contemplated by these charges were completed by September 30, 2003. Cash expenditures for actions recorded to date
under the Program are expected to total approximately $9.9 million for severance and other costs of facility closings and contract terminations of which $9.6
million has been spent as of September 30, 2003.

10
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Prior Year Special Charges — 2001 Streamlining Program

The amounts recorded in 2002 as special charges (credits) include a net credit of $0.4 million and $1.3 million of costs incurred in the third quarter and nine
months, respectively, related to the streamlining and cost reduction program (the “Plan”) recorded at the end of 2001. The Plan was comprised of costs associated
with actions undertaken to reduce the productive capacity of the Company and realign employment levels to better match with lower actual and forecast rates of
incoming business. In total, the Plan required a cuamulative pretax charge of $52.0 million consisting of aggregate 2002 special charges of $3.4 million and
$48.6 million of charges recognized in 2001.

The $0.4 million net credit in the third quarter of 2002 related to charges of $0.5 million for severance and facility relocation costs incurred, offset by
$0.9 million of favorable estimate adjustments in connection with managements’ ongoing review of accrued costs.

Substantially all actions contemplated in the Plan were completed by December 31, 2002. Cash expenditures through September 30, 2003 associated with the
Plan totaled $12.4 million for severance and other costs of facility closings, prior to $11 million in asset sale recoveries achieved to date. An additional $1-
2 million in asset sale recoveries is expected.

9. Comprehensive Income:

Total comprehensive income and its components are as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2003 2002 2003 2002
Net income $34.4 $31.1 $80.4 $56.0
Foreign currency translation adjustments (2.0) 0.3 5.4 2.3
Unrealized gain on investments 0.3) — 0.2) 0.1
Cash flow hedge — 0.1 (1.3)
Comprehensive income $32.1 $31.4 $85.7 $57.1
10. Segment Information
The following table sets forth financial information by business segment (in millions):
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2003 2002 2003 2002
Net Sales
Electrical $339.6 $333.0 $ 982.7 $ 826.1
Power 86.1 82.6 249.9 247.2
Industrial Technology 31.6 30.2 93.5 88.3
Total Sales $457.3 $445.8 $1,326.1 $1,161.6
I I I I
Operating Income
Electrical $ 374 $ 31.6 $ 950 $ 783
Special (charges) credits, net 0.2 0.2 (5.8) (0.6)
Gain on sale of business — 1.6 — 3.0
Total Electrical 37.6 334 89.2 80.7
Power 10.3 8.1 24.1 24.3
Special (charges) credits, net — 0.3 — (0.3)
Total Power 10.3 8.4 24.1 24.0
Industrial Technology 3.0 2.6 7.3 2.1
Special (charges) credits, net — (0.1) — (0.4)
Total Industrial Technology 3.0 2.5 7.3 1.7
Total Operating Income 50.9 44.3 120.6 106.4
Other income (expense), net 4.4 (3.9) (12.0) (7.2)
Income before income taxes and accounting change $ 46.5 $ 40.4 $ 108.6 $ 99.2

1
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11. Product Warranty

The Company offers a product warranty which covers defects on most of its products. These warranties apply only to products that are properly used for
their intended purpose, installed correctly, and properly maintained. The Company generally accrues estimated warranty costs at the time of sale. Estimated
warranty expenses are based upon historical information such as past experience, product failure rates, or the number of units repaired. Adjustments are
made to the product warranty accrual as claims are incurred or as historical experience indicates. The liability is reviewed for reasonableness on a quarterly
basis and may be adjusted as additional information regarding expected warranty costs become known. Changes in the accrual for product warranties in the

first nine months of 2003 are set forth below.

(In Millions)
Balance at December 31, 2002 $5.3
Current year provision 2.5
Expenditures (1.9)
Balance at September 30, 2003 $59

12
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations

In the third quarter of 2003, net sales, net income and earnings per share increased compared to the third quarter of 2002 despite soft market conditions in the
industrial, commercial and utility markets affecting each of the Company’s three business segments. All business segments reported higher sales and operating
profits.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2003, net sales and operating profit also increased year over year across all business segments. Acquisitions
contributed significantly to these increases including the acquisition of LCA, the domestic lighting fixtures business of U.S. Industries, Inc. completed in April
2002, and a utility pole-line hardware business purchased from Cooper Power Systems, Inc. in November 2002. Income and earnings per share before the
cumulative effect of an accounting change for the first nine months of 2003 were lower than the comparable 2002 nine month period as a result of higher interest
expense and a higher effective tax rate. See further detail under “Segment Results” included herein.

The Company’s served markets have shown little change from previous quarters of this year with third quarter order input activity similar to the first two
quarters. However, increased sales were achieved in the quarter compared with the 2002 third quarter as a result of improved demand in domestic residential and
DIY markets, higher worldwide oil and gas project shipments and from domestic utilities in response to Hurricane Isabel. Despite continuing softness in industrial
and commercial markets, the Company has made additional progress towards its goals for operational improvement. The Company believes it is well positioned
for future growth and improved profitability when business conditions improve. Management remains confident about the fundamental strengths of Hubbell’s
business and its prospects for the future.

The following activities represent management’s top priorities to strengthen the Company’s profitability and market position:

+ Transformation of business processes. The Company is in the second year of its lean sigma process improvement initiative. Kaizen process improvement
events are occurring at eighteen major manufacturing facilities throughout the Company with more than 75% of these employees involved in the transformation.
The lean sigma initiative has also expanded to include business process and product design process improvements. More than 40% of the Company’s total
employees are actively involved in these activities.

*  Working capital initiatives. The Company has made substantial gains in reducing working capital levels in each quarter of 2003. Year-to-date, net inventory
has been reduced by approximately $47 million compared with year end 2002 while days supply has improved. Accounts receivable days outstanding and
accounts payable days outstanding continue to improve versus 2002.

» Lighting integration and cost reduction. The Company continues to focus on executing the lighting business integration program. Product rationalizations and
consolidations of factory and warehouse space are planned or have already been completed, including a decision made in the 2003 second quarter to discontinue
the entertainment lighting fixture product line. Actions remaining include additional facility and function consolidation, which have not yet been formalized. The
Company is also pursuing selective global outsourcing initiatives to lower overall product cost.

* Acquisitions in the Company’s core markets. The Company continues to seek out prospective businesses that would enhance its core electrical component
businesses — wiring systems, lighting fixtures and controls, rough-in electrical products, and utility products.

+ Common, enterprise-wide business systems. The Company recently announced its decision to pursue the implementation of an enterprise-wide information
system, referred to internally as “Hubbell 2006”. A multi-year project is underway to provide a state-of-the-art business system architecture to meet the needs of
the business. The Company has completed the assessment and selection of software and formed a cross-functional team with representation from each business
segment. The enterprise-wide business system expects to provide several advantages:

0 Standardization of business processes and information with improved analysis of key business drivers and operational performance.
0 Common, standardized interfaces with customers and suppliers.

o Greater support of Hubbell’s cost reduction and process improvement initiatives.

o Rapid integration of new businesses either acquired or internally developed.
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Multiple implementations will be staged by business units over a 33 month timeframe with an expected completion date in 2006. The Company expects the
total cost of the program will be in a range of $35 to $50 million over the next 30 months. Approximately 70% of the total is expected to be capitalized with the
remainder to be expensed as incurred. The Company expects to expense approximately $4 to $5 million in 2003 and $8 to $12 million in 2004 related to this
initiative.

Selected Financial Data
In millions, except per share data

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
% of % of % of % of

2003 Net sales 2002 Net sales 2003 Net sales 2002 Net sales

Net sales $457.3 $445.8 $1,326.1 $1,161.6

Cost of sales 329.1 330.4 972.4 863.7
Gross profit 128.2 28.0% 115.4 25.9% 353.7 26.7% 297.9 25.6%
Selling & administrative expenses 77.5 16.9% 73.1 16.4% 227.3 17.1% 193.2 16.6%
Operating income 50.9 11.1% 44.3 9.9% 120.6 9.1% 106.4 9.2%

Earnings per share before accounting
change — diluted $ 0.57 $ 0.52 $ 133 $ 1.36
I I I I
Net Sales

Net sales for the 2003 third quarter of $457.3 million increased 3% over the third quarter 2002 with all segments contributing to the increase. Increased sales
were the result of increased demand in the lighting fixture market within the Electrical segment, strong demand for specialty communications equipment within
the Industrial Technology segment and increased utility industry demand resulting from Hurricane Isabel in the Power segment. Favorable foreign exchange rates
contributed one half of one percentage point of the 3% increase. Net sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 increased 14% over the nine month
period ended September 30, 2002. Sales increased in all segments with the largest increase occurring in the Electrical segment due primarily to the 2002
acquisition of LCA.

On a comparative basis, that is had the Company owned LCA for the entire year in 2002, net sales were essentially unchanged for the first nine months of
2003 versus the same period in 2002. Management believes this is the most relevant comparative basis due to the integration of the lighting businesses. Net sales
in 2003 reflect continued weakness in the commercial construction, utility, and telecommunications markets the Company serves, offset by strong sales in retail
and residential construction markets. Sales to the retail and residential construction market increased approximately 16% in the first nine months of 2003
compared to the same period in 2002 and represent approximately 14% of the Company’s consolidated net sales.

Gross Profit

Gross profit margin in the third quarter 2003 increased to 28.0% compared to 25.9% in the third quarter 2002. For the nine months ended September 30, 2003,
gross profit margin increased to 26.7% compared to 25.6% for the nine months ended September 30, 2002. The improvement in gross profit margin in the quarter
and year-to-date compared with 2002 is primarily attributable to improved margin in the Company’s lighting businesses as a result of higher sales of residential
and certain commercial and industrial products. The Company’s combined wiring systems and electrical products businesses reported modestly lower gross profit
percentages for the third quarter and year to date periods versus the prior year due to more competitive pricing and higher unabsorbed fixed manufacturing costs,
partially offset by productivity improvements. Power segment gross margin improved in the third quarter due to a favorable patent infringement settlement
totaling $1.6 million, pretax. Gross profit margins in the Company’s Industrial Technology segment improved in the quarter and on a year-to-date basis versus the
comparable periods of 2002 due to higher margins at the GAI-Tronics specialty communications business and, on a year-to-date basis, lower inventory write-
downs.

Selling & Administrative (S&A) Expenses
S&A expenses for the third quarter of 2003 were 16.9% of net sales, an increase from 16.4% of net sales in the third quarter of 2002. For the first nine months
of 2003, S&A expenses were 17.1% of net sales compared to 16.6% of net sales in the first nine months of 2002. The increase in S&A as a percentage of sales in

both periods is primarily due to higher employee benefit, pension and
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insurance costs and expenses incurred related to the Company’s business system initiative.
Gain on Sale of Business

In April 2000, the Company completed the sale of its WavePacer assets for a purchase price of $61.0 million. The Company recognized a pretax gain on this
sale of $36.2 million in 2000. At the time of sale, the Company retained a contractual obligation to supply product to the buyer at prices below manufacturing
cost, resulting in an adverse commitment.

In September 2002, the Company entered into an agreement modifying the original manufacturing contract. In accordance with the modification agreement,
final quantities were shipped and the Company was released from all service and warranty obligations, which resulted in a pretax gain of $1.6 million in the 2002
third quarter. For the first nine months of 2002, a total pretax gain of $3.0 million related to this sale was recorded.

Special Charges

Special charges (credits), net in the third quarter of 2003 reflect a net credit of $0.2 million. The net credit in the quarter consists of special charges of
$1.0 million related to asset disposals, plant shutdown expenses and relocation of inventory and employees in connection with the ongoing lighting business
integration program (the “Program”). Offsetting the $1.0 million of special charges was income of $1.2 million primarily resulting from favorable adjustments
related to actual and estimated realizable values of buildings and equipment either sold or held for sale in connection with the Program.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2003, special charges (credits), net totaled $5.8 million, comprised of $7.0 million of expenses, partially offset by
the $1.2 million credit noted above.

The lighting business integration program began in December 2002 with a pretax charge to earnings of $10.3 million to provide for product line inventory
rationalization and reorganization costs. In addition to the amounts expensed in 2002, $2.0 million was accrued in the purchase accounting for the acquisition of
LCA for the cost of qualifying actions, bringing total 2002 program costs to $12.3 million, of which $3.8 million remained as an accrued cost at December 31,
2002.

During the 2003 third quarter, $0.7 million of severance costs were charged against the reserve. Total Program spending through September 30, 2003 was
$5.3 million. Additional information related to the lighting business integration program is contained in Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Substantially all actions contemplated by the charges recognized to date were completed by September 30, 2003. Remaining actions are expected to be
completed by year end. However, the Company also expects to expense $1 — $3 million of additional costs in 2003 and $10 — $20 million in 2004 in connection
with the Program as additional actions are announced or expenses are incurred. These actions are expected to include relocation and closure of manufacturing and
office facilities and additional expenses associated with the actions already being undertaken.

Other Income/Expense

In the third quarter and first nine months of 2003, investment income declined versus the third quarter and first nine months of 2002 due to lower average
interest rates. Interest expense decreased $0.6 million in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third quarter of 2002 as a result of having no commercial paper
outstanding in 2003. Interest expense increased to $15.5 million for the first nine months of 2003 compared to $12.3 million in the first nine months of 2002 as a
result of higher average debt outstanding, which was incurred to fund the LCA acquisition, partially offset by the lack of commercial paper borrowings in 2003 as
a result of the Company’s strong cash flow.

Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate was 26% for the third quarter of 2003 compared to 23% in the third quarter of 2002. This increase reflects a higher mix of
U.S. earnings in 2003 as a result of acquiring additional U.S.-based businesses. The effective tax rate in the first nine months of 2003 was 26% compared to 18%
in the first nine months of 2002. The year to date 2002 effective tax rate reflected the impact of a $5.0 million tax benefit recorded in connection with the

settlement of a tax issue with the IRS in the second quarter of 2002.
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Net Income and Earnings per share (Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change)

Net Income and diluted earnings per share before the camulative effect of an accounting change increased in the third quarter of 2003 compared to the third
quarter of 2002. The current year quarter benefited from higher sales and gross profit margins, partly offset by higher S&A expenses and a higher effective tax
rate. Included in the third quarter of 2003 is a favorable patent infringement settlement of $1.6 million, pretax, and a $0.2 million, net credit in connection with
the lighting business integration program. These items had a $.02 favorable effect on Earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change in the
2003 third quarter.

Income and diluted earnings per share before the cumulative effect of an accounting change in the first nine months of 2003 decreased by $1.0 million
compared to the first nine months of 2002 due to higher lighting business integration costs, higher interest expense, a higher effective tax rate, higher S&A
expenses as a percentage of sales, and the absence of a $3.0 million gain on sale of business, which when combined, more than offset increased sales and gross
profit margins.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change

In accordance with SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, the Company performed initial impairment tests of the recorded value of goodwill
during 2002. As a result of this process, the Company identified one reporting unit within the Industrial Technology segment with a book value, including
goodwill, which exceeded its fair market value. The Company recorded a non-cash charge of $25.4 million, net of tax, or $0.43 per share-diluted to write-down
the full value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. This charge was reported as the cuamulative effect of an accounting change.
Segment Results

Electrical

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30

2003 2002 2003 2002

(In millions)

Net sales $339.6 $333.0 $982.7 $826.1
Operating income 37.6 33.4 89.2 80.7
Operating margins 11.1% 10.0% 9.1% 9.8%

2003 third quarter Electrical segment sales increased 2% compared to the 2002 third quarter on the strength of residential lighting fixture sales. Net sales
increased 19% for the first nine months of 2003 compared to the first nine months of 2002 primarily due to the acquired businesses and growth in residential
lighting fixture sales due to increased demand from residential construction and do-it-yourself markets. Sales of wiring systems and electrical products, including
hazardous location products, were essentially unchanged on a combined basis in the quarter.

On a comparable basis, (calculated by adding 2002 pre-acquisition sales for LCA to 2002 reported sales), year to date segment sales decreased 2% versus
2002. The decrease on a comparable basis is the result of lower sales of commercial and industrial lighting fixture products where market activity declined, partly
offset by strong residential lighting fixture sales. Positive comparisons were also reported in wiring systems and electrical products combined due in part to
favorable currency effects and the impact of owning Hawke for a full nine months in 2003.

Segment operating margins in the third quarter of 2003 improved 1.1 percentage points versus the comparable period in 2002. Operating margins for the first
nine months of 2003 decreased by 0.7 percentage points compared to the first nine months of 2002. The following items affected comparability between periods:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2003 2002 2003 2002

(In millions)

Lighting integration costs (included in Cost of goods sold) — — $(1.8) —
Special (charges) credits, net $0.2 $0.2 $(5.8) $(0.6)
Gain on sale of business — $1.6 — $ 3.0
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Operating margin improvement in the third quarter of 2003 compared to third quarter 2002 is primarily due to higher gross profit margins in the lighting
fixture businesses due to a combination of higher sales, a mix of higher margin products, and lower product cost resulting from product outsourcing and cost
reduction actions associated with the lighting integration program.

The decline in the year-to-date operating margin resulted from higher lighting business integration costs and charges of $7.0 million. The first nine months of
2002 also included a $3.0 million gain on sale of business. Excluding the impact of lighting business integration costs and charges and the gain on sale of
business, comparable operating margins were 0.4 percentage points higher year to date 2003 compared to year to date 2002. The improvement is primarily due to
improved sales and profitability of lighting fixture products, partially offset by higher unabsorbed fixed manufacturing costs and higher costs associated with
insurance, pension and other benefit costs in each of the segment’s businesses.

Power

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30

2003 2002 2003 2002

(In millions)

Net sales $86.1 $82.6 $249.9 $247.2
Operating income $10.3 $ 84 $ 241 $ 24.0
Operating margins 12.0% 10.2% 9.6% 9.7%

Net sales in the Power segment increased 4% in the 2003 third quarter versus the third quarter of 2002 due to $2.0 million of sales generated by Hurricane
Isabel during September 2003 and the acquisition of a pole-line hardware business in September 2002. Net sales for the first nine months of 2003 increased 1%
compared to the first nine months of 2002 due to the pole-line hardware acquisition. Excluding the acquired business, year-to-date Power segment sales were
lower due to turmoil and uncertainty throughout the utility industry. Many utility customers are contending with liquidity constraints and have significantly
reduced capital spending and maintenance spending, despite recent evidence of the need for utility infrastructure investment. Operating margins improved in the
third quarter as a result of a $1.6 million pretax favorable cash settlement received from a patent infringement lawsuit. Operating margins in the first nine months
of 2003 declined versus the comparable period in 2002 primarily as a result of competitive pricing and higher unabsorbed fixed manufacturing costs. In addition,
year to date 2003 operating margins were negatively impacted by start up costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of the pole-line hardware business.
These integration activities were substantially completed by March 31, 2003.

Industrial Technology
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2003 2002 2003 2002

(In millions)

Net sales $31.6 $30.2 $93.5 $88.3
Operating income 3.0 2.5 7.3 1.7
Operating margins 9.5% 8.3% 7.8% 1.9%

Net sales in the Industrial Technology segment for the third quarter and first nine months of 2003 increased 5% and 6%, respectively, versus the comparable
periods of 2002. Third quarter and year to date sales at the GAI-Tronics business improved 9% and 10%, respectively, in 2003 as a result of strong sales of
security oriented communications equipment. Operating margins improved in the third quarter and first nine months of 2003 compared to the third quarter and
first nine months of 2002. Margin improvement is due to profitability improvements at GAI-Tronics, which improved operating margins more than 3 points in the
quarter and year-to-date due to strong project oriented sales at comparatively higher gross profit margins. In addition, operating margins in the 2002 third quarter
and first nine months were negatively affected by inventory write-downs recorded in the high voltage test business as a result of declining demand forecasts and
unrecoverable valuations.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL
Investments in the Business

In the first nine months of 2003, the Company spent approximately $17 million on additions to property, plant and equipment, an increase of approximately
6% from the comparable period in 2002 due primarily to additions in support of acquired businesses.

In 2003, the Company continues to invest in process improvement through its lean initiatives. In the second year of this initiative, the Company currently has
eighteen major facilities and approximately 40% of its workforce participating in business process improvement events.

Cash Flow

Nine Months Ended
September 30
2003 2002
In Millions
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $189.8 $ 150.7
Investing activities (5.5) (292.1)
Financing activities (48.9) 187.5
Net change in cash and temporary cash investments $135.4 $ 46.1
I I

Cash flows provided from operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 increased $39.1 million from the comparable period in 2002. The
increase reflects lower tax payments in the U.S., the absence of the 2002 tax settlement with the IRS, which resulted in a $16 million payment in the prior year, as
well as higher accounts payable, higher employee benefit accruals and a reduction in cash outlays in support of restructuring activities in 2003. Partially offsetting
these increases was a higher use of cash to fund accounts receivable due to an increase in sales in the third quarter 2003 versus the third quarter of 2002.

Cash flow from investing activities aggregated to a use of cash of $5.5 million in the first nine months of 2003 compared to a $292.1 million use of cash in the
first nine months of 2002. In the first nine months of 2002, investing cash outflows includes $268.5 million of funding for the LCA and Hawke acquisitions. In
the first nine months of 2003, investing cash flow includes approximately $4.0 million of proceeds from asset sales included in Other, net and $1.4 million of net
proceeds of investment sales/maturities compared to a net investment of $9.3 million in securities in the first nine months of 2002. Net cash used for financing
activities decreased in the first nine months of 2003 when compared to the same period in 2002. Financing sources of cash in 2002 reflect $237.8 million of
borrowings used to fund the LCA and Hawke acquisitions.

Working Capital

September 30, December 31,
2003 2002
In Millions
Current Assets $708.1 $596.3
Current Liabilities 288.8 254.7
Working Capital $419.3 $341.6
I I

Working capital increased $77.7 million from December 2002 to September 2003 due to increased cash and temporary cash investments. Excluding cash and
temporary cash investments, working capital declined $57.7 million due to higher accounts payable and accruals and lower inventory, partially offset by higher
accounts receivable. Working capital initiatives continue to be emphasized at all Company locations. At the end of September 2003, days of inventory-on-hand of
60 days improved by 20 days compared to the end of 2002. The Company expects a full year 2003 reduction of net inventories of $50 to $55 million. Days sales
of receivables outstanding improved by 2 days to 50 days for the year to date period ended September 30, 2003 compared with 52 days for the year to date period
ended December 31, 2002.

Debt to Capital

The definition of debt to total capital and net debt to total capital as disclosed below are non-GAAP measures that may not be comparable to definitions used
by other companies. The Company believes that its ratios of debt to total capital and net debt to total capital
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are appropriate for measuring its financial leverage.

September 30, December 31,
2003 2002
In Millions
Total Debt $ 298.8 $ 298.7
Total Shareholders’ Equity 782.7 744.2
Total Capital $1,081.5 $1,042.9
I I
Debt to Total Capital 28% 29%
Cash and Investments $ 265.1 $ 1315
Net Debt (Total debt less cash and investments) $ 337 $ 167.2
Net Debt to Total Capital 3% 16%
I I

At September 30, 2003 Net Debt, (debt net of cash and investments), declined $133.5 million from year-end 2002. Net debt to total capital of 3% was 13
points lower than 16% as of December 31, 2002 due to increased cash flow from operations.

At September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, the Company’s debt consisted solely of long-term notes. These notes are fixed rate indebtedness, with
amounts of $100 million and $200 million due in 2005 and 2012, respectively. These long-term notes are not callable and are only subject to accelerated payment
prior to maturity if the Company fails to meet certain non-financial covenants, all of which were met at September 30, 2003. The most restrictive of these
covenants limits the Company’s ability to enter into mortgages and sale-leasebacks of property having a net book value in excess of $5 million without the
approval of the Note holders. Borrowings were also available from committed bank credit facilities up to $200 million, although these facilities were not used
during the first nine months of 2003. Borrowings under credit agreements generally are available with an interest rate equal to the prime rate or at a spread over
the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). Annual commitment fee requirements to support availability of the credit facility total approximately $0.2 million.
The Company’s credit facility includes covenants that the Company’s shareholders’ equity will be greater than $524.6 million and total debt will not exceed
$750 million. The Company was in compliance with all debt covenants as of September 30, 2003.

Although not the principal source of liquidity for the Company, management believes its credit facilities are capable of providing significant financing
flexibility at reasonable rates of interest. However, a significant deterioration in the results of operations or cash flows, leading to deterioration in financial
condition, could either increase the Company’s borrowing costs or restrict the Company’s ability to borrow. The Company has not entered into any other
guarantees, commitments or obligations that could give rise to unexpected cash requirements.

Liquidity

In the third quarter of 2003, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a stock repurchase program. The stock repurchase program replaces and
supercedes the program announced in December 2000 and authorizes the repurchase of up to $60 million of the Company’s Class A and Class B common stock.
The program will be implemented through open market and privately negotiated transactions. The timing of such transactions will depend on a variety of factors,
including market conditions, but the program is expected to be completed within no later than three years. As of September 30, 2003 the Company had not
repurchased any shares under the program.

Management measures liquidity on the basis of the Company’s ability to meet short-term and long-term operational funding needs, fund additional
investments, including acquisitions, and make dividend payments to shareholders. Significant factors affecting the management of liquidity are cash flows from
operating activities, capital expenditures, stock repurchases, access to bank lines of credit and the Company’s ability to attract long-term capital with satisfactory
terms.

Internal cash generation together with currently available cash and investments, available borrowing facilities and an ability to access credit lines if needed, are
expected to be more than sufficient to fund operations, the current rate of dividends, capital expenditures, and any increase in working capital that would be
required to accommodate a higher level of business activity. The Company actively seeks to expand by acquisition as well as through the growth of its current
businesses. While a significant acquisition may require additional borrowings, the Company believes it would be able to obtain financing based on its favorable
historical earnings performance and strong financial position.

The funded status of the Company’s pension plans is dependent upon many factors, including returns on invested pension fund assets and the level of interest
rates. The Company expects that it will make a cash contribution to its defined benefit pension plans of between $15 and $30 million in the fourth quarter of

2003.
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Debt Ratings

Debt ratings of the Company’s debt securities at September 30, 2003, which remained consistent with ratings as of December 31, 2002, appear below:

Moody’s Investor

Standard & Poors Services Fitch
Senior Unsecured Debt A+ A3 A
Commercial Paper A-1 P-2 F1

Critical Accounting Policies

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies is included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations contained in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. Management believes that the application of these policies on a
consistent basis enables the Company to provide the users of the financial statements with useful and reliable information about the Company’s operating results
and financial condition.

The Company is required to make estimates and judgments in the preparation of its financial statements that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosures. The Company continually reviews these estimates and their underlying assumptions to ensure they are
appropriate for the circumstances. Changes in total estimates and assumptions used by management could have a significant impact on the Company’s financial
results.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In January 2003, FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” was issued. The interpretation provides guidance on consolidating variable interest
entities and applies immediately to variable interests created after January 31, 2003. The guidelines of the interpretation will become applicable for the Company
in its fourth quarter 2003 financial statements for variable interest entities created before February 1, 2003. The interpretation requires variable interest entities to
be consolidated if the equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit an entity to finance its activities without support from other parties or the equity
investors lack certain specific characteristics. The Company has reviewed FIN No. 46 and does not expect any material impact or disclosure requirement under
the provisions of the interpretation.

In April 2003, the FASB released SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 149 clarifies
the accounting for derivatives, amending the previously issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 149
clarifies under what circumstances a contract with an initial net investment meets the characteristics of a derivative, amends the definition of an underlying
contract, and clarifies when a derivative contains a financing component in order to increase the comparability of accounting practices under SFAS No. 133.
SFAS No. 149 is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No. 149 did not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity”. SFAS
No. 150 establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. SFAS
No. 150 applies specifically to a number of financial instruments that companies have historically presented within their financial statements either as equity or
between the liabilities section and the equity section, rather than as liabilities. SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after
May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company had no financial instruments which
met the criteria under SFAS No. 150 and, therefore, there was no impact on its financial statements.

Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information included in this Form 10-Q contains “forward looking statements” as defined by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
These include statements about our capital resources, performance and results of operations and are based on the Company’s reasonable current expectations. In
addition, all statements regarding anticipated growth or improvement in our operating results, anticipated market conditions, and economic recovery are forward

» o« 2«

looking. Forward-looking statements may be identified by the use of words, such as “believe”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “should”, “plan”, “estimated”,
“could”, “may”, “subject to”, “purport”, “might”, “if”, “contemplate”, “potential”, “pending,” “target”, “goals”, and “scheduled”, and similar words or phrases.
Discussions of strategies, plans or intentions often contain forward looking statements. Such forward-looking statements involve numerous assumptions, known

and unknown risks, uncertainties and other such factors, that could cause actual and future

» o«
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performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different or incorrect from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied
by such forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

* Net cash expenditures, expected amount of asset sale recoveries and timing of actions in connection with the lighting business integration program.

+ Expected levels of operating cash flow and uses of cash.

*  General economic and business conditions in particular industries or markets.

» Expected benefits of process improvements and other lean initiatives.

»  Future acquisitions.

* Anticipated operating margin improvements.

+ Future levels of indebtedness and capital spending.

* Repurchases of common stock under the Company’s common stock repurchase program.

+ Ability to continue long-standing relationships with major customers and penetrate new channels of distribution.

« Ability to achieve projected levels of efficiencies and cost reduction measures.

* Adverse changes in currency exchange rates or raw material commodity prices.

*  Competition.

« Pension plan assumptions and future contributions.

»  Unexpected costs or charges, certain of which might be outside the control of the Company.

Any such forward looking statements are not guarantees of future performances and actual results, developments and business decisions may differ from those
contemplated by such forward looking statements. The Company disclaims any duty to update any forward looking statement, all of which are expressly qualified
by the foregoing.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
In the operation of its business, the Company has exposures to fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates, raw material prices and interest rates. Each of
these risks and the Company’s strategies to manage the exposure are consistent with the prior year in all material respects. There has been no significant
change in these risks or in the Company’s strategies to manage the exposure during the first nine months of 2003. However, the Company’s product
procurement practices continue to emphasize an increased level of purchases from international locations, primarily China, which subjects the Company to
increased political and exchange risk. For discussion of the Company’s exposure to market risk, refer to Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
about Market Risk, contained in the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2002.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s
Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules
and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its President and Chief Executive Officer
and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and
evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-

benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.
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As of September 30, 2003, the end of the quarter covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based on the foregoing, the Company’s
President and Chief Executive Officer and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and

procedures were effective at a reasonable level of assurance.

There has been no change in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially

affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.

PART II — OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

EXHIBITS

Number

Description

3a*

31.1*

31.2%*

32.1%*

32.2%

* Filed herewith

Hubbell Incorporated Restated Certificate of Incorporation, Restated as of September 23, 2003.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as Adopted Pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as Adopted Pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002.
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REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

On July 23, 2003, the Company filed a Form 8-K to include its Press Release dated July 23, 2003 pertaining to the financial results of the Company for the
quarter ended June 30, 2003 as required under Item 12, Disclosure of Results of Operations and Financial Condition.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

HUBBELL INCORPORATED
- -s- William T. Tolley -s- Gregory F. Covino
Dated: November 7, 2003 William T. Tolley Gregory F. Covino
Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller and
Chief Financial Officer Chief Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 3a

HUBBELL INCORPORATED
(A Stock Corporation)
Restated Certificate of Incorporation
(By Action of the Board of Directors)

FIRST: That the name of the corporation is Hubbell Incorporated.

SECOND: That said corporation shall be located in the Town of Orange, County of New Haven, in the State of Connecticut, or any other place the Board of
Directors shall determine.

THIRD: That the nature of the business to be transacted, and the purposes to be promoted or carried out, by said corporation are as follows:

To manufacture, buy, sell, own and deal in machinery, tools, machine screws, electrical goods, supplies, apparatus, devices and fixtures of every character,
material and description, and to buy, sell, own, and deal in letters patent and rights and licenses under letters patent, necessary or convenient for the prosecution of
its business, and to grant rights and licenses to others under letters patent which may be owned by said corporation, and to buy, sell, mortgage, own and deal in
such real estate as may be necessary or convenient for the prosecution of its business, and to engage in any other lawful business permitted under the laws of the
State of Connecticut, and generally to do all things necessary or convenient for the prosecution of its business, and the proper conduct and management thereof.

FOURTH: A. The total number of shares of the capital stock of this corporation hereby authorized is 205,891,097 divided into 5,891,097 shares of Preferred
Stock without par value, 50,000,000 shares of Class A Common Stock of the par value of $0.01 each, and 150,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock of the
par value of $0.01 each.

B. Except as may otherwise be provided by law, the holders of record of Class A and Class B Common Stock shall vote as a single class, and the holder of
record of each issued and outstanding share of Class A Common Stock shall be entitled to have 20 votes and the holder of record of each issued and outstanding
share of Class B Common Stock shall be entitled to have one vote, upon all matters brought before any meeting of the stockholders of the corporation. In all other
respects, whether as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the corporation, or otherwise, the holders of record of the Class A
Common Stock and the holders of record of the Class B Common Stock shall have identical rights and privileges on the basis of the number of shares held except
that stock dividends may be declared and paid on shares of Class A Common Stock in whole or in part in shares of Class B Common Stock.

C. No holder of stock of the corporation of any class shall have any preemptive or other rights to subscribe to or purchase any new or additional or increased
shares of stock of this corporation of any class or any scrip, rights, warrants, bonds or other obligations, security or evidences of indebtedness, whether or not

convertible into or exchangeable for, or shall claim rights to purchase or otherwise acquire, shares of stock of the corporation of any class.

C.1 The corporation may, to the extent of its unreserved and unrestricted capital surplus, (a) make distributions of cash or property to its shareholders with
respect to its outstanding shares or any thereof, and (b) make purchases and permit conversions of its own shares for cash, securities or other property.
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D. The Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in series and each series shall be so designated as to distinguish the shares thereof from the shares
of all other series. All shares of Preferred Stock shall be of equal rank and shall be identical except as expressly determined by the Board of Directors pursuant to
this paragraph FOURTH. The Board of Directors is hereby expressly vested with authority to fix and determine the variations as among such series. Except as
otherwise provided by law, the foregoing authority shall include without limitation with respect to each such series authority to fix and determine the number of
shares thereof, the dividend rate, whether dividends shall be cumulative and, if so, from which date or dates, voting rights, liquidation rights, the redemption price
or prices, if any, and the terms and conditions of the redemption, any sinking fund provisions for the redemption or purchase of shares of the series, and the terms
and conditions on which the shares are convertible into Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, or both, if they are convertible; provided, however,
that all shares of Preferred Stock shall constitute one and the same class, and shall be of equal rank, regardless of series, in respect of the payment of dividends
and distributions in liquidation. Before the issuance of shares of Preferred Stock any provision of which is fixed by the Board of Directors as hereinbefore set
forth, the Board of Directors shall by its Resolution amend the Certificate of Incorporation as required by Section 33-666 of the Connecticut General Statutes.

Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock

1. Designation and Amount. There shall be a series of Preferred Stock that shall be designated as “Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock,” and the
number of shares constituting such series shall be 56,000. Such number of shares may be increased or decreased by resolution of the Board of Directors and filing
of a Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company; provided, however, that no decrease shall reduce the number of shares of
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock to less than the number of shares then issued and outstanding plus the number of shares issuable upon exercise of
outstanding rights, options or warrants or upon conversion of outstanding securities issued by the Company.

2. Dividends and Distribution.

(A) Subject to the prior and superior rights of the holders of any shares of any class or series of stock of the Company ranking prior and superior to the
shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, the holders of shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, in
preference to the holders of shares of any class or series of stock of the Company ranking junior to the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock in respect
thereof, shall be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available for the purpose, quarterly dividends payable
in cash on the 15th day of January, April, July and October, in each year (each such date being referred to herein as a “Quarterly Dividend Payment Date™),
commencing on the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date after the first issuance of a share or fraction of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, in an amount per share (rounded to the nearest cent) equal to the greater of (a) $10.00 and (b) the Adjustment Number (as defined below) times the
aggregate per share amount of all cash dividends, and the Adjustment Number times the aggregate per share amount (payable in kind) of all non-cash dividends
or other distributions other than a dividend payable in shares of the Class A Common Stock, par value $0.01, of the Company (the “Class A Common Stock™) or
shares of the Class B Common Stock, par value $0.01, of the Company (the “Class B Common Stock™) declared on the Class A Common Stock or a subdivision
of the outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock (by reclassification or otherwise), since the immediately preceding Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, or,
with respect to the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, since the first issuance of any share or fraction of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock. The “Adjustment Number” shall initially be 1000. In the event the Company shall at any time after
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December 9, 1998 (i) declare and pay any dividend on Class A Common Stock payable in shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, (ii)
subdivide the outstanding Class A Common Stock or (iii) combine the outstanding Class A Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each such
case the Adjustment Number in effect immediately prior to such event shall be adjusted by multiplying such Adjustment Number by a fraction the numerator of
which is the number of shares of Class A Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Class
A Common Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to such event. For purposes of paragraph (A) of this Section 2, shares of Class B Common Stock
declared as a dividend with respect to shares of Class A Common Stock shall be treated as shares of Class A Common Stock.

(B) The Company shall declare a dividend or distribution on the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock as provided in paragraph (A) above
immediately after it declares a dividend or distribution on the Class A Common Stock (other than a dividend payable in shares of Class A Common Stock or Class
B Common Stock).

(C) Dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative on outstanding shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock from the Quarterly Dividend
Payment Date next preceding the date of issue of such shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, unless the date of issue of such shares is prior to the
record date for the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, in which case dividends on such shares shall begin to accrue from the date of issue of such shares, or
unless the date of issue is a Quarterly Dividend Payment Date or is a date after the record date for the determination of holders of shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock entitled to receive a quarterly dividend and before such Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, in either of which events such dividends
shall begin to accrue and be cumulative from such Quarterly Dividend Payment Date. Accrued but unpaid dividends shall not bear interest. Dividends paid on the
shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock in an amount less than the total amount of such dividends at the time accrued and payable on such shares
shall be allocated pro rata on a share-by-share basis among all such shares at the time outstanding. The Board of Directors may fix a record date for the
determination of holders of shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock entitled to receive payment of a dividend or distribution declared thereon,
which record date shall be no more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for the payment thereof.

3. Veting Rights. The holders of shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall have the following voting rights:

(A) Each share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall entitle the holder thereof to a number of votes equal to the product of (I) the
Adjustment Number and (IT) twenty (20) on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the Company.

(B) Except as required by law and by Section 10 hereof, holders of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall have no special voting rights and
their consent shall not be required (except to the extent they are entitled to vote with holders of Class A Common Stock as set forth herein) for taking any
corporate action.

(C) If, at the time of any annual meeting of stockholders for the election of directors, the equivalent of six quarterly dividends (whether or not consecutive)
payable on any share or shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock are in default, the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors of the
Company shall be increased by two. In addition to voting together with the holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock for the election of
other directors of the Company, the holders of record of the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class to the exclusion of the
holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock, shall be




entitled at said meeting of stockholders (and at each subsequent annual meeting of shareholders), unless all dividends in arrears on the Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and set apart for payment prior thereto, to vote for the election of two directors of the Company, the
holders of any Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock being entitled to cast a number of votes per share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock as
is specified in paragraph (A) of this Section 3. Each such additional director shall serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders for the election of directors,
or until his successor shall be elected and shall qualify, or until his right to hold such office terminates pursuant to the provisions of this Section 3(C). Until the
default in payments of all dividends which permitted the election of said directors shall cease to exist, any director who shall have been so elected pursuant to the
next preceding sentence may be removed at any time, without cause, only by the affirmative vote of the holders of the shares of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock at the time entitled to cast a majority of the votes entitled to be cast for the election of any such director at a special meeting of such holders
called for that purpose, and any vacancy thereby created may be filled by the vote of such holders. If and when such default shall cease to exist, the holders of the
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall be divested of the foregoing special voting rights, subject to revesting in the event of each and every
subsequent like default in payments of dividends. Upon the termination of the foregoing special voting rights, the terms of office of all persons who may have
been elected directors pursuant to said special voting rights shall forthwith terminate, and the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors shall be
reduced by two. The voting rights granted by this Section 3(C) shall be in addition to any other voting rights granted to the holders of the Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock in this Section 3.

4. Certain Restrictions.

(A) Whenever quarterly dividends or other dividends or distributions payable on the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock as provided in Section 2
are in arrears, thereafter and until all accrued and unpaid dividends and distributions, whether or not declared, on shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock outstanding shall have been paid in full, the Company shall not:

(i) declare or pay dividends on, make any other distributions on, or redeem or purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of stock
ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) to the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock;

(ii) declare or pay dividends on or make any other distributions on any shares of stock ranking on a parity (either as to dividends or upon liquidation,
dissolution or winding up) with the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, except dividends paid ratably on the Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock and all such parity stock on which dividends are payable or in arrears in proportion to the total amounts to which the holders of all such shares are then
entitled; or

(iii) purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, or any shares of stock ranking on a
parity with the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, except in accordance with a purchase offer made in writing or by publication (as determined by the
Board of Directors) to all holders of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, or to such holders and holders of any such shares ranking on a parity therewith,
upon such terms as the Board of Directors, after consideration of the respective annual dividend rates and other relative rights and preferences of the respective
series and classes, shall determine in good faith will result in fair and equitable treatment among the respective series or classes. For purposes of such
determination, the Board of Directors of the Company will not take into account the differences in the
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voting rights between the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock, without par value, of the Company
(the “Series B Preferred Stock”).

(B) The Company shall not permit any subsidiary of the Company to purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of stock of the Company
unless the Company could, under paragraph (A) of this Section 4, purchase or otherwise acquire such shares at such time and in such manner.

5. Reacquired Shares. Any shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock purchased or otherwise acquired by the Company in any manner
whatsoever shall thereupon become authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stock and may be reissued as part of a new series of Preferred Stock to be created
by resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors, subject to any conditions and restrictions on issuance set forth herein.

6. Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up.

(A) Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, voluntary or otherwise, no distribution shall be made to the holders of shares of stock
ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) to the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock unless, prior thereto, the
holders of shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall have received an amount per share (the “Series A Liquidation Preference”) equal to the
greater of (i) $100 plus an amount equal to accrued and unpaid dividends and distributions thereon, whether or not declared, to the date of such payment and
(ii) the Adjustment Number times the per share amount of all cash and other property to be distributed in respect of the Class A Common Stock upon such
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company.

(B) In the event, however, that there are not sufficient assets available to permit payment in full of the Series A Liquidation Preference and the liquidation
preferences of all other classes and series of stock of the Company, if any, that rank on a parity with the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock in respect
thereof, then the assets available for such distribution shall be distributed ratably to the holders of the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and the
holders of such parity shares in proportion to their respective liquidation preferences.

(C) Neither the merger or consolidation of the Company into or with another corporation nor the merger or consolidation of any other corporation into or
with the Company shall be deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company within the meaning of this Section 6.

7.  Consolidation, Merger, Etc. In case the Company shall enter into any consolidation, merger, combination or other transaction in which the outstanding
shares of Common Stock are exchanged for or changed into other stock or securities, cash and/or any other property, then in any such case each share of Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall at the same time be similarly exchanged or changed in an amount per share equal to the Adjustment Number times the
aggregate amount of stock, securities, cash and/or any other property (payable in kind), as the case may be, into which or for which each share of Class A
Common Stock is changed or exchanged.

8. No Redemption. Shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall not be subject to redemption by the Company.
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9. Ranking. The Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall rank (a) junior to all other series of the Preferred Stock (other than the Series B
Preferred Stock) as to the payment of dividends and as to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, unless the terms of any such series
shall provide otherwise, (b) pari passu with the Series B Preferred Stock as to such matters and (c) senior to the Class A Common Stock and the Class B Common
Stock as to such matters.

10. Amendment. At any time that any shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Certificate of Incorporation of the
Company shall not be amended in any manner which would materially alter or change the powers, preferences or special rights of the Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock so as to affect them adversely without the affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class.

11.  Fractional Shares. Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock may be issued in fractions of a share that shall entitle the holder, in proportion to such
holder’s fractional shares, to exercise voting rights, receive dividends, participate in distributions and to have the benefit of all other rights of holders of Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock.

Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock

1. Designation and Amount. There shall be a series of Preferred Stock that shall be designated as “Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock,” and the
number of shares constituting such series shall be 280,000. Such number of shares may be increased or decreased by resolution of the Board of Directors and
filing of a Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company; provided, however, that no decrease shall reduce the number of shares of
Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock to less than the number of shares then issued and outstanding plus the number of shares issuable upon exercise of
outstanding rights, options or warrants or upon conversion of outstanding securities issued by the Company.

2. Dividends and Distribution.

(A) Subject to the prior and superior rights of the holders of any shares of any class or series of stock of the Company ranking prior and superior to the
shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, the holders of shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock, in
preference to the holders of shares of any class or series of stock of the Company ranking junior to the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock in respect
thereof, shall be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available for the purpose, quarterly dividends payable
in cash on the 15th day of January, April, July and October, in each year (each such date being referred to herein as a “Quarterly Dividend Payment Date™),
commencing on the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date after the first issuance of a share or fraction of a share of Series B Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, in an amount per share (rounded to the nearest cent) equal to the greater of (a) $10.00 and (b) the Adjustment Number (as defined below) times the
aggregate per share amount of all cash dividends, and the Adjustment Number times the aggregate per share amount (payable in kind) of all non-cash dividends
or other distributions other than a dividend payable in shares of the Class B Common Stock, par value $0.01, of the Company (the “Class B Common Stock”)
declared on the Class B Common Stock or on shares of the Class A Common Stock, par value $0.01, of the Company (the “Class A Common Stock”) or a
subdivision of the outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock (by reclassification or otherwise), since the immediately preceding Quarterly Dividend Payment
Date, or, with respect to the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, since the first issuance of any share or fraction of a share of Series B Junior Participating
Preferred Stock. The “Adjustment Number” shall initially be




1000. In the event the Company shall at any time after December 9, 1998 (i) declare and pay any dividend on Class B Common Stock or Class A Common Stock
payable in shares of Class B Common Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding Class B Common Stock or (iii) combine the outstanding Class B Common Stock into
a smaller number of shares, then in each such case the Adjustment Number in effect immediately prior to such event shall be adjusted by multiplying such
Adjustment Number by a fraction the numerator of which is the number of shares of Class B Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event and the
denominator of which is the number of shares of Class B Common Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to such event. For purposes of paragraph (A) of
this Section 2, shares of Class B Common Stock declared as a dividend with respect to shares of Class A Common Stock shall not be deemed outstanding
immediately following the occurrence of such event.

(B) The Company shall declare a dividend or distribution on the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock as provided in paragraph (A) above
immediately after it declares a dividend or distribution on the Class B Common Stock (other than a dividend payable in shares of Class B Common Stock or a
dividend payable with respect to Class A Common Stock payable in shares of Class B Common Stock).

(C) Dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative on outstanding shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock from the Quarterly Dividend
Payment Date next preceding the date of issue of such shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock, unless the date of issue of such shares is prior to the
record date for the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, in which case dividends on such shares shall begin to accrue from the date of issue of such shares, or
unless the date of issue is a Quarterly Dividend Payment Date or is a date after the record date for the determination of holders of shares of Series B Junior
Participating Preferred Stock entitled to receive a quarterly dividend and before such Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, in either of which events such dividends
shall begin to accrue and be cumulative from such Quarterly Dividend Payment Date. Accrued but unpaid dividends shall not bear interest. Dividends paid on the
shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock in an amount less than the total amount of such dividends at the time accrued and payable on such shares
shall be allocated pro rata on a share-by-share basis among all such shares at the time outstanding. The Board of Directors may fix a record date for the
determination of holders of shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock entitled to receive payment of a dividend or distribution declared thereon,
which record date shall be no more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for the payment thereof.

3. Veting Rights. The holders of shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall have the following voting rights:

(A) Each share of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall entitle the holder thereof to a number of votes equal to the Adjustment Number on all
matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the Company.

(B) Except as required by law and by Section 10 hereof, holders of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall have no special voting rights and
their consent shall not be required (except to the extent they are entitled to vote with holders of Class B Common Stock as set forth herein) for taking any
corporate action.

(C) If, at the time of any annual meeting of stockholders for the election of directors, the equivalent of six quarterly dividends (whether or not consecutive)
payable on any share or shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock are in default, the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors of the
Company shall be increased by two. In addition to voting together with the holders of Class B Common Stock and Class A Common Stock for the election of
other directors of the




Company, the holders of record of the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class to the exclusion of the holders of Class B
Common Stock and Class A Common Stock, shall be entitled at said meeting of stockholders (and at each subsequent annual meeting of shareholders), unless all
dividends in arrears on the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and set apart for payment prior thereto, to vote for the election
of two directors of the Company, the holders of any Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock being entitled to cast a number of votes per share of Series B
Junior Participating Preferred Stock as is specified in paragraph (A) of this Section 3. Each such additional director shall serve until the next annual meeting of
stockholders for the election of directors, or until his successor shall be elected and shall qualify, or until his right to hold such office terminates pursuant to the
provisions of this Section 3(C). Until the default in payments of all dividends which permitted the election of said directors shall cease to exist, any director who
shall have been so elected pursuant to the next preceding sentence may be removed at any time, without cause, only by the affirmative vote of the holders of the
shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock at the time entitled to cast a majority of the votes entitled to be cast for the election of any such director at
a special meeting of such holders called for that purpose, and any vacancy thereby created may be filled by the vote of such holders. If and when such default
shall cease to exist, the holders of the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall be divested of the foregoing special voting rights, subject to revesting in
the event of each and every subsequent like default in payments of dividends. Upon the termination of the foregoing special voting rights, the terms of office of
all persons who may have been elected directors pursuant to said special voting rights shall forthwith terminate, and the number of directors constituting the
Board of Directors shall be reduced by two. The voting rights granted by this Section 3(C) shall be in addition to any other voting rights granted to the holders of
the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock in this Section 3.

4. Certain Restrictions.

(A) Whenever quarterly dividends or other dividends or distributions payable on the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock as provided in Section 2
are in arrears, thereafter and until all accrued and unpaid dividends and distributions, whether or not declared, on shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred
Stock outstanding shall have been paid in full, the Company shall not:

(i) declare or pay dividends on, make any other distributions on, or redeem or purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of stock
ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) to the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock;

(ii) declare or pay dividends on or make any other distributions on any shares of stock ranking on a parity (either as to dividends or upon liquidation,
dissolution or winding up) with the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock, except dividends paid ratably on the Series B Junior Participating Preferred
Stock and all such parity stock on which dividends are payable or in arrears in proportion to the total amounts to which the holders of all such shares are then
entitled; or

(iii) purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock, or any shares of stock ranking on a
parity with the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock, except in accordance with a purchase offer made in writing or by publication (as determined by the
Board of Directors) to all holders of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock, or to such holders and holders of any such shares ranking on a parity therewith,
upon such terms as the Board of Directors, after consideration of the respective annual dividend rates and other relative rights and preferences of the respective
series and classes, shall determine in good faith will result in fair and equitable treatment among the respective series or classes. For purposes of such

-8-




determination, the Board of Directors of the Company will not take into account the differences in the voting rights between the Series B Junior Participating
Preferred Stock and the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, without par value, of the Company (the “Series A Preferred Stock”).

(B) The Company shall not permit any subsidiary of the Company to purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of stock of the Company
unless the Company could, under paragraph (A) of this Section 4, purchase or otherwise acquire such shares at such time and in such manner.

5. Reacquired Shares. Any shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock purchased or otherwise acquired by the Company in any manner
whatsoever shall thereupon become authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stock and may be reissued as part of a new series of Preferred Stock to be created
by resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors, subject to any conditions and restrictions on issuance set forth herein.

6. Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up.

(A) Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, voluntary or otherwise, no distribution shall be made to the holders of shares of stock
ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) to the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock unless, prior thereto, the
holders of shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall have received an amount per share (the “Series B Liquidation Preference”) equal to the
greater of (i) $100 plus an amount equal to accrued and unpaid dividends and distributions thereon, whether or not declared, to the date of such payment and
(ii) the Adjustment Number times the per share amount of all cash and other property to be distributed in respect of the Class B Common Stock upon such
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company.

(B) In the event, however, that there are not sufficient assets available to permit payment in full of the Series B Liquidation Preference and the liquidation
preferences of all other classes and series of stock of the Company, if any, that rank on a parity with the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock in respect
thereof, then the assets available for such distribution shall be distributed ratably to the holders of the Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock and the
holders of such parity shares in proportion to their respective liquidation preferences.

(C) Neither the merger or consolidation of the Company into or with another corporation nor the merger or consolidation of any other corporation into or
with the Company shall be deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company within the meaning of this Section 6.

7.  Consolidation, Merger, Etc. In case the Company shall enter into any consolidation, merger, combination or other transaction in which the outstanding
shares of Common Stock are exchanged for or changed into other stock or securities, cash and/or any other property, then in any such case each share of Series B
Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall at the same time be similarly exchanged or changed in an amount per share equal to the Adjustment Number times the
aggregate amount of stock, securities, cash and/or any other property (payable in kind), as the case may be, into which or for which each share of Class B
Common Stock is changed or exchanged.

8. No Redemption. Shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall not be subject to redemption by the Company.
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9. Ranking. The Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall rank (a) junior to all other series of the Preferred Stock (other than the Series A
Preferred Stock) as to the payment of dividends and as to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, unless the terms of any such series
shall provide otherwise, (b) pari passu with the Series A Preferred Stock as to such matters and (c) senior to the Class A Common Stock and the Class B Common
Stock as to such matters.

10. Amendment. At any time that any shares of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Certificate of Incorporation of the
Company shall not be amended in any manner which would materially alter or change the powers, preferences or special rights of the Series B Junior
Participating Preferred Stock so as to affect them adversely without the affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding shares of Series B Junior
Participating Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class.

11.  Fractional Shares. Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock may be issued in fractions of a share that shall entitle the holder, in proportion to such
holder’s fractional shares, to exercise voting rights, receive dividends, participate in distributions and to have the benefit of all other rights of holders of Series B
Junior Participating Preferred Stock.

FIFTH: That the amount of capital with which this corporation shall commence business is one hundred thousand dollars.
SIXTH: That the duration of the corporation is unlimited.

SEVENTH: The personal liability of any Director to the corporation or its shareholders for monetary damages for breach of duty as a Director is hereby limited to
the amount of the compensation received by the Director for serving the corporation during the year of the violation if such breach did not (a) involve a knowing
and culpable violation of law by the Director, (b) enable the Director or an associate, as defined in Section 33-840 of the Connecticut General Statutes, to receive
an improper personal economic gain, (c) show a lack of good faith and a conscious disregard for the duty of the Director to the corporation under circumstances
in which the Director was aware that his conduct or omission created an unjustifiable risk of serious injury to the corporation, (d) constitute a sustained and
unexcused pattern of inattention that amounted to an abdication of the Director’s duty to the corporation, or (e) create liability under Section 33-757 of the
Connecticut General Statutes. This provision shall not limit or preclude the liability of a Director for any act or omission occurring prior to the date this provision
becomes effective. Any lawful repeal or modification of this provision by the shareholders and the Board of Directors of the corporation shall not adversely affect
any right or protection of a Director existing at or prior to the time of such repeal or modification.

EIGHTH: The corporation shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify its Directors from and against any and all of the liabilities, expenses and other
matters referenced in or covered by the Connecticut Business Corporation Act. In furtherance and not in limitation thereof, the corporation shall indemnify each
Director for liability, as defined in subsection (5) of Section 33-770 of the Connecticut General Statutes, to any person for any action taken, or any failure to take
any action, as a Director, except liability that (i) involved a knowing and culpable violation of law by the Director, (ii) enabled the Director or an associate, as
defined in Section 33-840 of the Connecticut General Statutes, to receive an improper personal economic gain, (iii) showed a lack of good faith and conscious
disregard for the duty of the Director to the corporation under circumstances in which the Director was aware that his conduct or omission created an unjustifiable
risk of serious injury to the corporation, (iv) constituted a sustained and unexcused pattern of inattention that amounted to an abdication of the Director’s duty to
the corporation, or (v) created liability under Section 33-757 of the Connecticut General Statutes; provided
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that nothing in this sentence shall affect the indemnification of or advance of expenses to a Director for any liability stemming from acts or omissions occurring
prior to the effective date of this Paragraph EIGHTH.

The corporation shall indemnify each officer of the corporation who is not a Director, or who is a Director but is made a party to a proceeding in his capacity
solely as an officer, to the same extent as the corporation is permitted to provide the same to a Director, and may indemnify such persons to the extent permitted
by Section 33-776 of the Connecticut General Statutes.

The indemnification provided for herein shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those indemnified may be entitled under any bylaw,
agreement, vote of shareholders or disinterested Directors or otherwise, both as to action in such person’s official capacity and as to action in another capacity
while holding such office, and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a Director or officer and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and
administrators of such a person.

B. Expenses incurred by a Director or officer of the corporation in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding shall be paid for or reimbursed by
the corporation to the fullest extent permitted by law in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on
behalf of such Director or officer to repay such amount if it shall be ultimately determined that such Director or officer is not entitled to be indemnified by the
corporation.

C. The corporation may indemnify and pay for or reimburse the expenses of employees and agents not otherwise entitled to indemnification pursuant to this
Paragraph EIGHTH on such terms and conditions as may be established by the Board of Directors.

D. No amendment to or repeal of this Paragraph EIGHTH shall apply to or have any effect on the indemnification of any Director, officer, employee or
agent of the corporation for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such Director, officer, employee or agent occurring prior to such amendment or repeal, nor
shall any such amendment or repeal apply to or have any effect on the obligations of the corporation to pay for or reimburse in advance expenses incurred by a
Director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation in defending any action, suit or proceeding arising out of or with respect to any acts or omissions occurring
prior to such amendment or repeal.

NINTH: References in this Restated Certificate of Incorporation to sections of the Connecticut General Statutes shall be deemed to include amendments
adopted form time to time to such sections and shall further be deemed to include any successor sections thereto.
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Exhibit 31.1
I, Timothy H. Powers, President and Chief Executive Officer of Hubbell Incorporated, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Hubbell Incorporated (the “registrant”).

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those

entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

9] Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially

affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

November 7, 2003

/s/ Timothy H. Powers

Timothy H. Powers
President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

I, William T. Tolley, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Hubbell Incorporated, certify that:

reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Hubbell Incorporated (the “registrant™).

on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

1. I have
2. Based

report;
3. Based

on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

November 7, 2003

/s/ William T. Tolley

William T. Tolley

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Hubbell Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2003 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Timothy H. Powers, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Timothy H. Powers

Timothy H. Powers
President and Chief Executive Officer
November 7, 2003

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Hubbell Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2003 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William T. Tolley, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ William T. Tolley

William T. Tolley
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

November 7, 2003

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



